
 

Commission Members 
Cynthia Hall ▪ Clayton Bussey ▪ Paul Edmondson ▪ Joe Mann ▪ Dawn King 

 
 

CITY OF YAKIMA  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

 
 

              
Date:  June 28, 2023 
Time:  5:30 p.m.  
Place: City Council Chambers 
Staff:  Joseph Calhoun, Planning Manager 
             
  

I. Call to Order         Commission Chair  
 

II. Roll Call         Staff Liaison 
 

III. Approval of Meeting Minutes 4/26/23     Commission Chair 
 

IV. Staff Announcements       Staff Liaison 
 

V. Audience Participation      Commission Chair 
 

VI. New Business  
 

A. Certificate of Appropriateness – 2 Chicago Ave    Staff Liaison 
 
VII. Other Business                                                                                          Commission Chair 

 
VIII. Adjournment 

 
 
Adjourn to next scheduled Historic Preservation Commission meeting July 26, 2023, at 5:30pm in 
the Council Chambers. 



 

Commission Members 
Cynthia Hall ▪ Clayton Bussey ▪ Paul Edmondson ▪ Joe Mann ▪ Dawn King 

 
 

CITY OF YAKIMA  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
 

             
Date:  April 26, 2023 
Time:  5:30 p.m.  
Place: Council Chambers, City Hall, 129, N. 2nd St. 
Staff:  Joseph Calhoun, Planning Manager/ Historic Preservation Liaison 
             
  

I. Call to Order           
Meeting was called to order at approximately 5:30 P.M. 
 

II. Roll Call          
Commissioners Hall, Edmondson, and King were present, with Commissioner Bussey and 
Mann absent (both excused). 
 

III. Approval of Meeting Minutes from 03/22/2023     
Minutes were approved unanimously. 
 

IV. Staff Announcements – Planning Manager Calhoun announced the following:   
A. Staffing in the City of Yakima Planning Division 

An assistant planner has been hired to join the City of Yakima Planning Division in July. 
B. General Announcement 

Some historic properties have recently been sold and the property owners have been 
communicating with Joseph, it is expected that the Historic Preservation Commission be 
seeing request for certificate of appropriateness for those properties.  

 
V. Audience Participation       

Spencer from Northwest Vernacular presented a presentation that gave insight about the 
Naches Historic Overlay.  
 

VI. New Business 
A. Naches Historic Overlay – Kickoff Meeting 

Reaching final steps regarding the grant from the department of archeology, historic 
preservation for the Naches historic overlay, consultant, Spencer from Northwest 
Vernacular prepared a presentation to kick start what will be two public meetings tied to 
historic overlay zone guidelines. Spencer’s presentation consisted of background 
information regarding overlay guidelines, what the guidelines are, such as their process 
and how they fit appropriately into planning, and possible effects of what the guidelines 
could be. The second public meeting is expected to be in June/July. 
 



 

Commission Members 
Cynthia Hall ▪ Clayton Bussey ▪ Paul Edmondson ▪ Joe Mann ▪ Dawn King 

B. Certificate of Appropriateness – 2403 W Chestnut Solar                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
A certificate of appropriateness was applied for regarding a proposal to install solar 
panels to the roof of a historic residence located at 2403 W Chestnut Ave. This property 
is one of the contributing properties in the Barge-Chestnut historic district. Material 
regarding this proposal was presented to the commission members for review and it was 
decided unanimously that this proposal be passed.  
 

VII. Old Business 
A. 2023 Grant Application 

A special meeting was held 04/05 to discuss and appropriately fill out the 2023 Grant 
Application. The application will be finalized with appropriate signatures and turned in on 
04/07.  

B. 9 S 10th Ave – Removal from Local Register 
Applicant of this request was not present, therefore discussion could not happen. 
According to the code, discussion is not warranted, and it is the responsibility of the 
commission to simply approve, and immediately remove the property from the local 
register among receipt of a written request that is signed and notarized by property 
owner. 
  

VIII. Other Business 
None. 
 

IX. Adjournment 
A motion to adjourn to May 24, 2023 was passed with a unanimous vote. The meeting was 
adjourned at approximately 6:20 P.M. 

 



































HISTOFue PROPERTY INVENTORY FORM

IDENTIFICATION SECTION

39-357
Caonichae1-Loudon House

Stata 01 Washington
Ollica 01 Archaaology and Historic Preservation
111 W. 21st Ava. KL-11
Olympia, WA '98504
(206) 753-5010

oo
GGoo

LOCATION SECnON

Streel Number 2 Chicago Ave.
Cily/Town YakiilIa . ~iJ1Code 98902
Counly 39 'l"" 13 Range ---l.li..- seer 24
Tax No.lParce' No. IBlj.l4-32478
UTM References Zone ] 0
Acreage: less than one.
Legal boundary description:

Nob Hill Addition to North
Yakima, Lot 1 and S ~ of
Lot 2.5t.lIIUI:

NeUonal Aegl.t.r
State Regilter
Survey I Inventory

• Determined Eligible
Other (NHL, HABS. HAER) Indicate

Classification Date:

District
Sile
Building
Structure
Object

oo
gJ
oo

DESCRIPTION SECnON
.. ateraalt & F•• tur.i/Structural Type.:

Roof Material: Root Type:
Wood Shingl. 0 Gable 6a
Alb •• toa/Asphalt Shingle Xl Flat 0
Siale 0 Monitor 0
Tar 0 Gambral Iii
Matal (.paclly) 0 Shad 0
Other Cspecify) 0• Cladding (Exterior. Wall Surfaces):

Log
Horizontal Wood Siding

ooo
ooo

Aab.alol,Asphell Shingle 0
Brick Masonry :1
Stone Masonry ~"
Stucco AJ

Terra Colt a 0
Carrara Glass 0
Vinyl / Aluminum Siding 0
Othar Copec;ly) 0

Wood Shingle

{

{ Split Shakes
Re-sawn
Machine Shingle

Rustic/Novelty
Clapboard

:. -

% Secl _-,SW= __ % % Sact -:NW= _

Eest;ng 6894"4,..O,--::-_~ Northing 5163190
USGSQuadrangle: Yakima West (7.5)

scale 1:24,000

PHOTOGRAPHY

Pholography Nag. No.: yw3- 1 9
(Roll No. + Frame No.)

View: _~NW:'-l:="",."..__ --
Dale: _.1..7 ...1 ...1 '1.9...1"'8"'6 _

Style/Form: (Check one or more 01 the 101l0wlng)

N J-r-
~ ~ ~
:! • C - C"U ~
~

• -'--•!!. g u
.E •'" :E ..Jr:~0 0 0 ]~0 0 0

.K]0 0 0.K]0 0 0
0 0 0 0

WE:.T YAKIMA

H;p 0
Pyramid 0
Sawtooth 0
Other (specify) 0

Foundation:
Log
Post & Pier
Stone
Concrete

Pioneer/Home.tead
Greek Revival
Gothic Revival
Itallan81e
Second Empire
Stick/Eastlake
Queen Anne
Shingla Styla
Richardsonian Romanesque
Chicago School/

Sullivanesque
Beau Arts Classicism
Princess Anne
Neo-Colonial

oo
G:a

oo
Br;ck 0
Othar Copec;fy) O

Block
Poured

Height/No. of Storl •• :
Ona 0
One and one-half []
Two ~
Two and one-half Li
Three []
Other (specify) 0

(include detailed description in
'Additional Description' section)

Additions 10 house plan , , ,
Changes to windows .
Changes to roor shape .
Changes to interior plan .. , .
Other (specify). . . . . . .

Integrity:

ooooooooo
oo
o

Dutch Colonial .
Spanish Colonial
English Revival
Bungalow
Crahaman
American Foursquarel

Classic Box
Prairie Style
Art Oeco/Moderne
Commercial Vernacular
Vernacular
Other (apecify)

oo
iao
K]
oooooo

o
fu
~



, ..~,--
NARRATIVE SECTION

Ar••• of Slgnlfle.nee/Study Unit Them •• : (check on8 or more 01 the following)

Agriculture
Architeeture/landscape Architeclure
Art'
Commerce
Communications
Community Planning /Devetcpment

o
Kloo
oo

Conservation 0
Educalion 0
Entertemmentv Becreatlon 0
Ethnic Herilege (specify)' 0
Heallh/Medicine 0
Manulacturing / Industry Q

Milila~ 0
Politick/Government .'Lew 0
Religion 0
Science & Engineering 0
Social Movements/Organizations 0
Transportation 0
Other (Spec;'y) 0

Dele 01 Construction;
Archilect /Bullder;
Hi.torical Significance:

(Reference nemes, dates, events, arees of significance/study

un;t thorne.) ca 1917-1919
arcbj+-ec+- lmkncwrr bllj Jdinq crrotractor, w. v. HDlden

Statement of Slg'nlflcance:

t! residence at 2 Chicago Avenue is associated with Yakima's second period of development from 1900 to 1918. The 1\C"1 Addition was platted April 6. 1910. A satellite community developed in this western section of Yakima followi,.-/'
e population boom in the first decade of the 1900's and the extension of streetcar lines by the Yakima Valley Trans-

portation Company. This area catered to a diverse group of new arrivals seeking opportunities in an expanding city and
to established families building modern residences in the suburbs. This residence is significant as one of the eclectic
designs of :the early 20th century developed by architects for upper income families in business and professions. The
Carmichael-Loudon House is a unIque example of blending the Craftsman styles introduced by California architects Greene
and Greene with English Revival influences and is representative of the larger, two-story residences built in eclectic
stlles in Yakima for affluent families. The house's irregular plan and complex gambrel and low gable roof pattern
re lectthe Craftsman style. Stucco cladding and the rolled edge false-thatched roof are typical elements of the English
Revival style. The massive, rusticated ashlar masonry entry has been placed at the south-east corner of the residencein concurrence ...ith intersecting street corners to create a strong focal point. These elements make this significant

Addlllona' D •• eMpton of PhyaJcal Appearance & Significant Architectural Feature.:
(Architecture I significance; een include in1erior & site features; address integrity
issues specifically)

The Carmichael House at 2 Chicago Avenue is a two story stucco cLadded residence of an unique design which includes
"Craftsman" forms and "English Revival" details. The building has an irregular plan ...ith the .second floor being
significantly dissimilar to the lower floor. The major roof is a cross gable ...ith a cross gambrel roof facing Chicago

tenue. A projecting bay has a hipped gable. A lower (east) gable completes the complex roof. The roof has ro Lle"
ofing ...ith a decorated edge forming a "false-thatched" roof edge. The southeast corner, the main entry, is ,

• sticated ashlar masonry forming an entry vestibule with a large segmented arched entry and·a semicircular niche to tn~/
side. The stone w ork frames three tall and narrow w indows and terminates in a stone parapet with corner piers. The
wi ndow s are predominately narro ...1/1 double-hung or casement units. A bow ...indow faces south, ...hile an angled bay
...indo...projects from the east elevation. The building is encased in a I,eavy mantel of ivy ...hich obscures much of the
features of the building. A garage in rear has many of the details of the residence including the "false-thatched"

Major Bibliographic R.f.renc •• : (Include books. pertcercers. manuscrip1s, newspapers,
legel documents, meps. photos. orel sources, etc.)

Newbill, Jim and Herb Blisard, eds. Yakima~ ~ Centinnial persPkctiV~ 1885-1985. Franklin Press, Yakima, 1984, p. 93.
Yakima Valley Museaum clipping, photo ana-manuscript-rrIes TVa ima Valley Museum, archives).
Lunceford, Marlene. Telephone intervie..., July 23, 1986.
Yakima Dail1 Re~blic. May 25, 1920.
Yakima Hera d. May 26 & 27, 1920.
Yakima County Assessor's records.Poll" R.L. & Co. North yakim!!!!ndYaki~ cOJillb' Direct2.£ie~. 1915-1968. .Schreiner Title Company rana recoras. BoOK A-78; BOOK 21, 334-357. (SchreIner Title Company, 30 N. 2nd St .• Yakima).



$;,. No.: ~3:::9~-..:3:::5:.:7__
Sit. Ham.:

S,.,. 01 W•• hlnglon
Ollice 01 Arch•• ology .nd H1.lorlc Pr••• rv.,lon
111 W. 21., Av•. KL·11
Olympl., WA98504
(206) 753·5010

H~S-'iORIC PROPERTY INVENTORY FORM
(Continuation Sh •• t)

Hi.lone
Common

carmichael-Loudon House 0.,.: 7/19/86

Statement of Significance ·(continued):
residence one of the most unique of the eclectic styles found in Yakima. Elizabeth Loudon Carmichael, founder of Yakima
City Creamery and Carmichael Ice Cream, built this home in 1917-1919. Elizabeth Loudon came to the Yakima valley from
:-lewZealand in 1884. Following her husband's death, she settled in Yakima City (Union Gap) in 1885 with their five
young children. Elizabeth opened a general merchandise store and served as the town's first postmistress. Again a
wi dow , following her marriage to Colin Carmichael, she established the town's first creamery in 1902. Mrs ..Carmichael

•
ter moved the business to North Yakima and at the time of her death in 1920, the creamery "as recognized as one of

kima's largest businesses. Her son, James A. Loudon and his "ife Minnie, lived in this splendid residence.until 1966 .
..any of the original furnishings were sold with the home to Don and Marlene Lunceford in 1967 and it remains in its
near-original 1917 state beneath the vine covered exterior.

Additional Description of Physical Appearance & Significant Architectural Features (continued):
hipped gable roof, and stucco cladding. This unique building has maintained the integrity of the priginal desian anddetails, although obsured by the extent of the existing vegetation. The interior reta1ns good 1ntegt1ty and includes
hardwood floors with inlaid borders; white onyx fireplace; oak French doors with bevelled glass; cove ceilings, and a
built-in ice cabinet in the kitchen (converted to electricity).

'Ibtal nurrU:Jerof =ntributing properties: 2 (house and garage)
non=ntributing properties: 0

•



•

•

!louse (2 Chicago Avenue), c. 1920. photographer unknCMrl . IDeation of



~~~~_·-·----"~·r·~=f·l
-I! __ " • "", • eO ...:1 • .0' •

.' ':K'~ln:n'::""""1 CA A,.. 'Schoql[=:: •• ._ jsobstatlon
TON • . • • • Rf. R~ -=- •

.AKIMA WESTQUADRANGLE. ~",,~,
" ~WASHINGTON- YAKIMA CO. .''o~o

7.5 MINUTE SERIES (Tapa RAPHIC) \q
ELLENSBURG 3/ 120030'

29 MI. TO INTERSTA TE ", 46°37'30"

-.--"~-.I: ::r ~l~;~.?0· ,
, ':1,.11 .. :. :;J:.: ..~. ® '". '. 21'" ......

F"~r''ii''-. jl~~~~~~··.··~~
I ••• 0' .~.... <:( ~

, ."•. Q

.0 <
Q
o,

'90

12
A. E. Howard House602 N. lst St .10 E690748 Ns164638

Alexander Miller House
314 N. 2nd St.
10 E690992 Ns164342

..... : •
Edward B. Moore House222 N. 2nd St •

10 E6910s3 Ns16417414

m3"
-=:J Detention Ho

j'B

Lardon-Hellieson House208 N. Naches Ave10 E691390 Ns164284

Richey House206 N.Naches Ave.
10 E691410 Ns164262

Dr! Charl~s J. Taft House
86 N th St1 E691 50 Nsi64076

Wilcox Houee~~~'19r----220 N. lSth Ave.~ 10 E689192 Ns163624

Sweet House6 Chicago Ave.10cE689li3B.N5163242
John J. Miller House

fOSE6a~gg6A*~163248
Winfield Perrin House12 S. 11th Ave.10 E689714 Ns163192
Carmichael-Loudon House2 Chicago Ave.

10 E689438 Nsl6.3208
Dills House4 N. 16th Ave10 E689224 Ns!63182
Watt House1511 Wh Chestnyt Ave.10 E68,,248 Ns103074
Dr. West House202 S. 16th Ave.10 E689228 Ns163036





• •
- Historic Houses of Yakir.a '!hematic

BroOker-Taylor House
Yakima, Washington
C. Holstine
8/28/85
OAHP, Olympia, WA ,
Northeast, Front elevation

10-21 / ff 22.
_ ..._-_ .._~.-~.-.'..- --,--------

--~_.-__ • __ •• 0 _~~_-- - _._-_.-

- Historic Houses of Yakima lliematic

Rupert Cam House
Yakima, Washington
C. Holstine
9/16/85
OAHP, Olympia, WA
Northeast, Front and side elevation
15-9

- Historic Houses of Yakima '!hematic

cantichael-lDudOO House _.'--. .,
Yakima, Washington
A. G. GroUch
7/19/86
OAHP, Olympia, WA
Northwest, Front and side elevation
YW3-l9 3 at .,);2,.

'1'I '



 

 1 

 
CITY OF YAKIMA  

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Commission Findings of Fact 

              
 

June 28, 2023 
 
In consideration of request for a Certificate of Appropriateness for alteration of historic 
property located at 2 Chicago Ave.:  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Caleb Foster 
         
REQUEST 
Re-roof existing garage (HPR#002-23) and house (HPR#003-23) with composite shingles – existing 
roofing material is cedar shingles. 

 
FINDINGS 

 
Property Owner: Caleb Foster  
Location:  2 Chicago Ave 
Parcel:  181324-32478 
 
Background – The applicant submitted a request to re-roof the existing garage and residence located 
at 2 Chicago Ave. The subject property, known as the “Carmichael-Loudon House” is listed on the 
Yakima Register of Historic Places.  The home was built in 1917 and is located at the NW corner of 
Yakima Ave and Chicago Ave. The home is a blend of Craftsman and English Revival architecture 
styles and influences. The roofing of both the garage and the residence contain a gambrel and low-
gable roof pattern with a rolled edge false-thatched roof edging. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 2 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 3 

 
Yakima Municipal Code, Chapter 11.62 Historic Preservation Ordinance  
The City of Yakima Historic Preservation Ordinance for Special Valuation governs the review of 
changes to Yakima Register of Historic Places and provides for the preservation, design review and 
rehabilitation of eligible historic properties with the city of Yakima. 
 
Review of Changes to Yakima Register of Historic Places Properties (Chapter 11.62.050) 
After identifying the distinguishing historic characteristics of a property subject to the design review 
process, retention and preservation of those features and materials are the primary goals of the design 
review effort. 
 
Review Required  
No person shall make any material change affecting significant historic features as listed in the 
designation form to any existing property on the Yakima Register of Historic or contributing property 
within a historic district on the Yakima Register without review by the commission and without receipt 
of a Certificate of Appropriateness as a result of the review.  The review shall apply to all features of 
the property that contribute to its designation and are listed on the designation. 
 
Requests for Review and Issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Waiver 
In accordance with YMC § 11.62.050(2)(B)(6), the proposed change in roofing materials is not exempt 
from design review. This application requires a Type II Review by the Commission for issuance of a 
Certificate of Appropriateness (YMC § 11.62.050(2)(C)(2).  The Type II Commission review decision 
shall be final and binding unless it is appealed to the Yakima City Council by the aggrieved person, 
public agency or other legal entity. 
 
Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation & Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic 
Buildings 
The intent of the Standards is to assist the long-term preservation of a property’s significance through 
the preservation of historic materials and features. The Standards pertain to historic buildings of all 
materials, construction types, sizes, and occupancy and encompass the exterior and interior of the 
buildings.  Rehabilitation assumes that at least some repair or alteration of the historic building will be 
needed in order to provide for an efficient contemporary use; however, these repairs and alterations 
must not damage or destroy materials, features or finishes that are important in defining the building’s 
historic character. 



 

 4 

Approval Recommendations 
The property meets the Standards for Rehabilitation as listed below: 

1) A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal change 
to its distinctive materials, features, spaces and spatial relationships. 

a. Not applicable 
 

2) The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive 
materials or alteration of features, spaces and spatial relationships that characterize a property 
will be avoided.  

a. Historic character will be retained by the change in roofing materials. The decorative 
curved roof edge that is a significant feature of the roof and is proposed to be 
maintained. The proposed composition shingles are similar to the asbestos/asphalt 
shingles that were on the roof when the WA State Historic Property Inventory form was 
filled out in 1986. 
  

3) Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that 
create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or elements 
from other historic properties, will not be undertaken. 

a. The property will remain as single-family residence with detached garage. No 
significant changes will occur on the property. 
 

4) Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be retained 
and preserved.  

a. No other changes are proposed. 
 

5) Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved. 

a. None of the existing architectural characteristics of the home will be changed. The 
composition shingles will not degrade from the properties distinct character and the 
false-thatched rounded edges will remain. 
 

6) Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the old 
in design, color, texture and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features will 
be substantiated by documentary and physical evidence. 

a. Deteriorated features will be repaired where possible and replaced where necessary 
with similar materials. 
   

7) Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest means 
possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used.  

a. Not applicable 
 

8) Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be 
disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken. 

a. Not applicable  
 

9) New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work will 
be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, 
scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.  

a. Not applicable 
 



 

 5 

10) New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner 
that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its 
environment would be unimpaired. 

a. Not applicable 
 
Basis for Decision - Based upon a review of design review guidelines stipulated in YMC 11.62.050, 
Review of Changes to Yakima Register of Historic Properties, application and, exhibits, testimony 
and other evidence presented at the open record public meeting by the City’s Historic Preservation 
Commission on June 28, 2023; and a review of Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
and Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings; the Historic Preservation Commission makes the 
following: 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 

1. The purpose of historic preservation design review guidelines is to preserve the historic 
integrity of properties; contributing or non-contributing listed on the Yakima Register of 
Historic Places.  

2. Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation of historic properties allows for the 
rehabilitation of a historic structure which makes possible an efficient contemporary use while 
preserving those portions and features of the property which are significant to its historic, 
architectural, and cultural values. 

3. The proposed composite shingles on the subject residence and garage will not damage 
historic features, and does not negatively impact the historic property. 

 
DECISION 

 
The Historic Preservation Commission, following a review of the application by a majority vote of its 
members, has determined that the request for the alteration will not adversely affect historic significant 
features of the residence or garage, and approves of the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness.  
The requested Type II for the historic residence located at 2 Chicago Ave., as described above is 
APPROVED, and determined to be eligible for issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness, as set 
forth in YMC 11.62.050. 
 
   

 
         
Cynthia Hall, Chair 

 
         
Date 

 
 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL 
Type II Commission review decision shall be final and binding unless it is appealed to the City of 
Yakima City Council by the aggrieved person, public agency or other legal entity in accordance with 
YMC 11.62.050(4)(d).  The appeal must be in writing on forms provided by the Commission, and filed 
with the Clerk of the City of Yakima within fourteen (14) days of the date of the decision.  Appeal forms 
may be obtained from the Department of Community Development. 
 


	06-28-2023 HPC Agenda
	04-26-2023 HPC Minutes_DRAFT
	HPR#002-23 and HPR#003-23 Packet
	Notice_HPR#002-23
	Application_HPR#002-23
	Application_HPR#003-23
	186470
	HPR#002-23_HPC Findings
	REQUEST
	Re-roof existing garage (HPR#002-23) and house (HPR#003-23) with composite shingles – existing roofing material is cedar shingles.
	CONCLUSIONS



